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JKB & Associates
Chartered Accountants Regd. No. - 435/069/70

Pepalbot-32, Dillibazar, Kathmandu, Nepal PAN No. - 600830818

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CBIL SECURITIES LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CBIL Securities Ltd., which comprise the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019) and the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash flows for
the year then ended and significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information.

Management 's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and the fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes designing
implementing maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud and error, selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statemants are free of material misstatements.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the accounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opireion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial positions of
CBIL Securities Lid. as-on Ashad 31, 2076 (16" July, 2019) and of its financial performance and cash
flow for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies
Act, 2063,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i We have obtained all the information and explanations, which were considered necessary for the
purpose for our audit.

ii. Financial Statements are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the Company.

Mobile No: 9851062276, E-mail: jkb.associates2012@gmail.bom i~
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iii. So far as it appears from our examination, books of accounts are properly maintained in
accordance with the prevailing laws.

iv. So far as it appears from our examination, we have not come across cases where the Board of
Directors or any member thereof or any representative or any office holder or any employee of the
company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Company.

V. The operations of the company were within its jurisdiction,

vi.  We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it appeared from our
examination of the books of accounts.

Place: Kathmandu

Date: 12/08/2019 For & On Behalf of
JKB & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
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CBIL Securities Limited
Statement of Financial Position
Asat 31st Ashad 2076 (16 July 2001

Figures in NPR
As at
M 315t Ashad 2076
ASSETS
Current Asseis:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.4 S0,015.364
Trade and Other Receivables -
Inventories -
Prepaid end Deposits 4.2 28,500
Other Assets -
Current Tax Assets 4.3 13,280
Total Current Assels 50,057,144
Mon-Current Assels:
Praperty, Plant and Equiment
Inangible Assets
Deferred Tax Assels
Total Non-Current Assets -
Total Assels 50,057,144
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabifities
Current Liabilities:
Trade and Other Payables =
Prepaid and Deposits Liabilities -
Provisions 4.4 28250
Current Tax Liabifities
Total Current Liabilities 28.250
Non-Carrent Linbilitics:
Provisions -
Other liabilities 4.5 5,400
Dreferred Government Grans
Total Non-Cuorrent Liabilities 5400
Total Liabilities 33,650
Equity
Share Capital 4.6 50,000,000
Retained Eamings 47 23,494
Reserves
Total Equity 500,023,494
Total Liabilities and Equity 0,057,144
The accompanying notes are- infegral part of these financial statements.
@&
{Anshish Koirala) {Praras Kumar Kifle)
Finance Officer
r
s
Director
Date: 271 1“{! T6

Flace: Kathmandu, Nepal
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CBIL Securities Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 315t Ashad 2076 (16 July 2009)

Figures in NPR
Year ended
Vi
S 31st Ashad 2076
Revenue 4.8
Trading Gain
Commiszion and Execution Fee
Interest Income 155,661
Other Income
Total Revenue 155,661
Depreciation and Amortisation
Personnel Expenses =
Other operating expense 49 (122,098)
Profit from Operation 33,562
Finance Income .
Frofit Before Tax 33,562
Income Tax Expense
Curren Tax 4.0 {10,069)
Deferred Tax CreditiCharge -
Profit for the year 25,494

Other comprehensive Income:
Other comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit or Ioss in subsequent periods
i Re-measurement (losses) / gains on post
employment defined benefit plans
i, Tex relsting to items that will net to be reclassified
1o profit or loss

Other comprebensive gain{loss) for the vear, net of tax -

Total Comprehensive gain/{loss) for the year, net of tax 23404

Earnings per equity share of Rs. 100 each
Basic Earnings pér share - Rs. (.05
Diluted Eamings per share - Rs. 005

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements,

-

(Paras Kumar Kafle)
Director

(Aashish Koirals)
Finance Officer

{Rajendra Ln: Shrestha) ditan Shrestha)

Director Chairman

pate: 216
Place: Kathmandu, Mepal
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CBIL Securities Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31st Ashad 2075 (16 July 2019}

Figures in NFR

Year ended
315t Ashad 76

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Sales revenue

Other Income

Finance Income

Receipis from other operating activities

Cash payment to employees

Other expense paid (122,098.17)
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and Habilities {122,095.17)
(Increase)Thecrease in operating nssels
Trade and Cther Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid and Deposits -
Cither Assets (41,779.94)
Increase/{Decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade and Other Payables
Prepaid and Deposils
Other Liabilities 3365000
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid (130,228,11)
Income taxes paid (10.068.71)
Met cash Mlow from ﬂpcrnr.in; activities (141, 296.53)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, Plant and equipment -
Proceeds from the sale of property, Plant and equipment
Acquisition of intangible assels
Purchase of investment properties
Proceeds from the sale of investment propertics
Interest received 1 55,6600 55
Net cash used in investing activities 155,060, 55
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from issue of shares S0,000,000.00
Orhier recepit/payment -
Met cash from financing activities S0,000,000,00
Net nerease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 50,015.363.72
Opening Cash and cash equivalents at | Shrawan -
Effect of exchange rate flsctuations on cash and cash equivalents held .
Cash and cash equivalents at Asadh end 50,015,363.72

—

® &
{Aashish Koirala) (Paras Kumar Kafle)
Finance Officer Director
[
(Raje LathmdhaJ As per report ofey
Directar Jiwan Kumar Bud
Proprietor
JKB &Associates
Date: 27 (4|6
Place: Kathmandu, Mepal
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CBIL Securities Limited
Statement of Changes In Equity
for the year ended 315t Ashad 2076 (16 July 201%)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Capirsl Revaluation Reserve Hetained earning rﬂmm:: Tatal
Capital Introduced 50,000,000
Profit for the year 23404
Other comprehensive income, net of tay
Rempasurement of defimed benefit Lobility (asset)
Nat gain { loss) on revaluation
Tatal Comprehensive income for the year 23404
Transier to reserve during the year u
Transfer from reserve during the year "
Galamce at 31 Axadh 2076 S0, 004, 005 - L3494 - 50,023,494
LS
L]
[Anshish Knirala} ita Pant) (Paras Kumar Kafle)
Finance Cfficer Directar Dirceor
]
endra Lal ha) As per report of
irecion Chaizman Jiwan Kumar Bu
Propai
JEB & Associates

Place, Kathmandu, Nepal
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CRIL Securities Limited
Motes to the fnancial statements Tor the year ended 31st Ashad 2076

MNote No. 4.1
Cash and Cash Equivalents {Figures in NPR)
. As at 315t Ashad
Particulars 2076
Cash in hand =
Cheque in Hand -
Balance with B/Fls 515,364
3 Month Fixed Deposit with BiFls 49,500,000
Cther 5
Total 50,015,364
MNote No. 4.2
Prepaid and Deposits
Particulars As at 3zt A;I[:I:;:
Employee and other Advance -
CIT Deposits =
Other Deposits 28,500
WAT Cradit z:
Less: hmpairment .
Total 18,500
MNote No.4.3
Current Tax Assets
As at 35t Ashad
Particulars 2076
Current Tax Assefs
Acdvance Tax 23.349.08
Less: Tax Liahilitics 10,0407
Total Current Tax Assets 13,280
Total 13.280
MNote No. 4.4
Provisions (Figures in NP'R)
. As at 3st Ashad
Particulars 2076
Shert Term Provision
Employes Bonus Provision -
Property Tax Provision .
Other Provisions 23,250
Total Short Term Provision 28,250
Long Term Provision
Employee Medical Provision .
Employee Leave Provision -
Employee Gratuity Provision -
Total Long Term Provision -
Total 28,250
Note Mo, 4.5
Tax Liabilitics (Figures in NPR)
Particulars Asat 31st Ashiad
2076
TDS Payable 5400
Total TDS Payable &84

e Buis™
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CBIL Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashad 2076

MNote: 4.6
Share Capital

As at 31st Ashad
Particulars 2076

Authorized capital;
1,000,000 ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 100,000,000

Issued capital;
300000 ordinary share of Rs.100 each 50,000,000

Subscribed and paid of capital:

500000 ordinary share of Rs.100 each 50,000,000
Total Paid Up Share Capital 50,000,000
Note: 4.7
Reserves

As at 31st Ashad
Particulars 2076
Retained Earnings 23,494
Other reserve =
Tatal
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CBIL Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 315t Ashad 2076

Note: 4.8
Revenue

Particulars

As at 31st Ashad
2076

Sales
Trading Gain
Commission and Execution Fee
Interest Income
Other Income

155,661

Tatal

155,661

Note: 4.9
Other operating expense

Particulars

As at 31st Ashad
2076

Directors' fee

Directors’ expense

Auditors' remuneration

Other audit related expense
Professional and legal expense
Office administration expense
Rental Expenses

Repair and Mintenance Expenses

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense

Fines and Penalties
Other

Total

122,098

Note: 4.10
Income Tax
Particulars

Current Year Income Tax

(10,069)

Total

(10,069)
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CRBIL Securities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year Ended 31" Ashadh, 2076 (July 16, 2019)

1. Reporting Entity
CBIL Securities Limited was incorporated on June 11, 2019 (Jestha 28, 2076) as public
company under the Companies Act, 2063. The principal activities of the Company are to
provide brokerage service related to securities, margin trading, investment in securities and
consultancy to its clients and other related services. Citizens Bank International Limited as
on date holds 100% controlling interest in the company.

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of
accounting.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit
or Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to
the Accounts. The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of financial
statements are set out below in point number 3.

2.1. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the company which comprises components mentioned above
have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (hereafter
referred as NFRS) issued by Accounting Standards Board of Nepal, endorsed by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2063 and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the industry in
Nepal.

2.2. Reporting Period

Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan (mid July) of any year to the last
day of Ashadh (mid July) of the next year as per the Nepali calendar.

Nepali Calendar English Calendar
Current Year 2075176 2018/19

28" Jestha 2076 to 11" June 2019 to
Current Year Period 31* Ashadh 2076 16" July 2019
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2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of the company are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which
is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates.
Financial information is presented in Nepalese Rupees. The figures are rounded to nearest
integer, except otherwise indicated.

2.4. Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgment

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that are considered while reporting amounts of assets and liabilities (including
contingent assets and liabilities) as of the date of the financial statements. Management
believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent
and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out below. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
certain accounting estimates. The areas where significant judgments and estimates have
been made in preparing the financial statements and their effects have been disclosed.

3.1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank accounts balances, highly liquid financial
assets with original maturity of 3 months from the date of its acquisition and are readily
convertible to cash, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and Cash equivalent are classified as financial assets and are measured at amortized
cost in the statement of financial position.

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Direct Method’ in accordance
with NAS 03- Cash Flow Statements.

3.2. Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably

measured.

3.3. Share Capital and Reserves

a) Share Capifal

The company classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities
in accordance with the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is




defined as residual interest in total assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities.
Common shares are classified as equity of the company and distributions thereon are
presented in statement of changes in equity.

3.4, Earnings per share

EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
company by number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

4. Related Party Disclosure

i. Related Party Disclosure of the company

The related parties of the company which meets the definition of related parties as
defined in “NAS 24 Related Party Disclosures” are as follows:

a) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
The key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility of planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity,
directly or indirectly including any director. The key management of the company
includes members of its Board of Directors. The name of the key management
personnel during the year were as follows:

Name of the Key Management Post
Personnel

Mr. Ramdhan Shrestha Chairman
Mr. Rajendral.al Shrestha Director
Mr. Paras Kumar Kafle Director
Ms. Smita Pant Director

b) The company has not make any payment towards compensation to Key
Management Persons as the operations has not commenced yet.

¢) Holding Company Shareholding %
Name and percentage of shareholding byHolding Company is as below:

Citizens Bank International Limited 100%
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Transaction with Holding Company

Citizens Bank International Limited

Citizens Bank International Limited (herein after ‘the Bank’) has made investment
in share capital of the company. The Bank holds 100 % controlling interest in the
company. Similarly, the Bank had deputed the ACEQ as the Chairman and 3 senior

level staffs as Directors of the company.

The principal activities of the Bank is to provide all commercial Banking services
including agency services, trade finance services, e-commerce services and trading
of gold and silver, etc. to its customers through head office, branches, branchless

banking units and ATMs,

1. The Bank has rented its building located in Kupondole, Lalitpur to the
Company with the agreement to pay Monthly Rent of NPR 60,000/ afier the
commencement of operation, which will be increased by 10% in every 2 year,

2. All receipt and payment transactions entered into by the company with the

Bank were made net of TDS.

3. The overall transactions with the Holding company included in Financial

Statements of the company has been tabulated below:

Particulars

NPR

Statement of Profit or
Loss

Interest Income

155,661

Total Income

155,661

Rent Paid

Total Expenses

Particulars

NPR

Statement of Financial
Pasition

Deposit in Holding
company

50,132,312
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5. Current Year Tax

Current year tax liability has been recognized on net profit at the rate of 30% after required
adjustment to arrive at taxable profit.

6. Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share, also called net income per share, is a market prospect ratio that
measures the amount of net income/ loss earned per share of stock outstanding. It is
calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

The earnings attributable to the ordinary equity holders consists of the earnings of the
company after deduction of all expenses including tax expense.

The calculation of basic earnings per share of the company has been based on the profit/
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and number of shares outstanding as tabulated

below:

Particulars 2075/76
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
NPR 23,494
Number of ordinary shares 500,000
Basic Earnings Per Share NPR 0.05
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JKB & Associates
Chartered Accountants Regd. No. - 435/069/70

Pepalbot-32, Dillibazar, Kathmandu, Nepal PAN No. - 600830818

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CBIL SECURITIES LIMITED

Cipinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true-and fair view of the state of the financial positions of
CBIL Securities Ltd. as on Ashad 31, 2077 (15™ July, 2020} and of its financial performance and cash
flow for the vear then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies
Act, 2063.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CBIL Securities Lid., which comprise the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as al Ashad 31, 2077 (July 15, 2020) and the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash flows for
the year then ended and significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information.

Management s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and the fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes designing
implementing maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statcments that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud and error, selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor s Responsibility

- Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our aundit. We
conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.
Those standards require that we comply with ethicgl requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements.

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the accounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by the management, as well as eyvaluating the overall financial statements presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Repart an Other Legal and Regulatory Reguiremenis

i We have obtained all the information and explanations, which were considered necessary for the
purpose for our andit,

il Financial Statements are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the i:ﬂll-lpﬁ_ll}".
: |_'_~"'.—'- L2} Pt

Mobile No: 9851062276, E-mail: jkb.associates2012@gm.
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Place; Kathmandu

So far as it appears from our examination, books of accounts are properly maintained in

-accordance with the prevailing laws.

So far as it appears from our examination, we have not come across cases where the Board of
Directors or any member thereof or any representative or any office holder or any employee of the
company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Company.

The operations of the company were within its jurisdiction,

We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it appeared from our
examination of the books of accounts. SEOuy

Date: oL ]Io |00 For & ®n Behalf of
UDIN Number: 201005CADDE09xIUOS JKB & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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CEBIL Securities Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31st Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)

Flgures in NPR
Naie As at Asat
Jlst 151 Asha ki
ASRSETS
Current Assels:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.1 53,326,958 50,005,364
Trade and Other Receivables =
Inventories =
Prepaid and Deposits 42 20,136 28,500
Oither Assels = =
Cumrent Tex Assels 43 375,113 13,280
Total Current Assets 53,722,208 S0.057,144
MNon-Current Assefs:
Property, Plant and Equiment
Intangible Assats
Deferned Tax Asssis
Total Non-Carrent Assets : - -
Total Assets 53,722,208 S0.057,144
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Current Liahilities:
Trade and Other Payvables =
Prepaid and Deposits Liabilities -
Provisions dd 28,250 28250
Current Tax Liabilities
Total Current Liahilities 28,250 28.250
Non=Current Liabilitics:
Provisions -
Other liabilities 45 - 5400
Deferred Govemnment Grant
Total Non-Cuorrent Liabilities - SA0
Total Liabilities 26,250 33650
Equity
Ehare Capital 4.6 50,000,000 0,000,000
Retained Eamings 47 3,603 958 23404
Heserves
Tatal Equity 53,693,958 50,023,494
Total Linbilitics and Equity 53,722,208 50,057,144

The secompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements,

~

{Aashish Koirala)

Finance Officer
{5u ulepati) {Ramdhan| Shrestha)
Director Cleairman
Datez O In".“l'l-“ p]

Place: Kathmandu, Mepal
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CBIL Securities Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)

Figures in NPR
Year ended Yearended
o 3istAshad2077 31t Ashad2076
Revenue 48
Trading Gain =
Commission and Execution Fee =
Interest Income 4,783,012 155,661
Oiher Income -
Taotal Revenue 4,783,012 155,661
Depreciation and Amortisation
Personnel Expenses a
Other operating expense 4.9 (46,928) {122,098)
Profit from Operation 4,736,083 33,562
Finance Income -
Profit Before Tax 4,736,083 33502
Income Tax Expense
Current Tax 440" (1.065:619) { 140, (Hs%y
Dreferred Tax Credit'Charge £
Profit for the year 3670465 23,494

Other comprehensive Income:
Other comprebensive Income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
i. Re-measurement (losses) ! gains on post
emplovment defined benefit plans
if. Tax relating 1o items that will not to be

reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive gain/{loss) for the year, net of tax - .

Total Comprehensive gain/{loss) for the year, net of tax 3670465 23,494

Earnings per equity share of Rs. 104 cach
Basic Eamings per share - Rs. 7.34 0.03
Diluted Exrnings per share - Rs. 7.34 0.05

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

(e

{Aashish Koirala)

Finance Officer

{Suman Mulepati) {Rm
Dircctor Chairman

pe: DA\0| 2020
Place: Kathmandu, Mepal
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CBIL Securities Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
Tor the vear ended 3151 Ashad 2077 (15 July 20240)
Figitres in NPR
Year ended Year ended

Izt Axhad 77 S5t Ashad 76

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Sales revenue - -
Other Income

Finange Income

Receipis from other operating activities

Cash poymeni 1o employess

Dither expense pmd (46,928 33) (122,098,17)
Dpermting cush Mows before changes in operating assets and Habilities {46,028.22) (122,098.17}

{Increase)Decrease in operating nssefs

Trade and Cilver Reveivables

Invenionies

Prepaid and Deposits .
e (353,469.87) (41,779.94)

Inerease{Decrease) in operating linbilitics

Trade and Ciher Payables

Prepaid and Depokits

Orther Liabilities (5,400.00) 33.650.00
et cash Mow from opernting activities befare tax pakd {405, T08,00) (130.228.11)
Income taxes paid {1,065,618.74) (10,068.71)
Net cash flow from operating activities (1,471.416.83) [140.296.53)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, Plant and equipment =

Proceeds fram the sale of property, Plant and equipment

Acquisition of imangible assets

Purchase of investoent properfies

Proceeds from the sale of mvestment propenies

Interest feceived 4,783,011.50 155,660 55
Net eash used in invesiing activities 4,783,011.50 15566055

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from issue of shares - 50,000,000,00
Oithver recapitpavmen - -
Mol cash from fnancing nctivities - S0, 0060, 0040, 00

Met incrense (decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 3.311,59%4.67 50,0015,363.72
Opening Cash and cash equivalents at | Shrawan 50,015,363.72 3
Effiect of exchionge rate fluctimbions on cash and cash equivalents held - -
Cash and cuwh sqpaivalends at m-!h end 5332695840 5001536372

X .

{Aashish Kodrala) {Akanksha
Finange Officer Director

-

{Su ul 1
Director

Chairrman

e oU\0| 2020

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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CBIL Sceuritics Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
Tor the year ended 3158 Ashad 2077 (15 July 2020)

Figures in NPR

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Caplial

Revaluation Reserve Retained carning

Otlver Total

Capital Intradiced
Prafit For the year
Oiher comprehensive income, net of tax
Rememsurement of defined benefin habitity (asset)
Ned gain { losz) on revahesiion

Tatal Comprehensive incente For the year

Transfer 1o resceve during the year

Transfer from reserve during the year

SOAR10,000

23,494

Balance ai 31 Asnidh 2076

S0,000, 000

= 13,454

- 20,023,494

Balance as at 1st Shrawan 2076
Frofit for the year
Other comprehensive Incame, net of tax
Remcasarement of defined benafir [ability (asset)
et gain { loss)on revaluation

Total Comprebensive income for the year

Transfer to reserve during the year

Transfer from reserve during ihe year

50,000,000

- 23,404
3470465

3,670,465

- 50,023,494

Balainee at 31 Asadh 2077

50,000,000

- 53,693,958

A buala.]+

Finance Officer
’

(5 cpat

Dxate: 01 bﬁ‘ ' m 2‘“

Place: Kathmandu, Mepal

i 3,693,958
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CBIL Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31st Ashad 2077

Note No. 4.1

{Figures in NPR)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

: As at Jlst Ashad As at 3st Ashad

L Particulars 2077 2076
Cash in hand - -
Chegue in Hand . -
Balance with B/Fls 3,326,958 515364
3 Month Fixed Deposit with B/Fls 50,000,000 49,500,000
Other - =
Total 53,326,958 50,013,364
Mote Mo, 4.2
Prepaid and Deposils

Particulars As at 31st Ashad As at 3st Ashad
o 2077 2076
Employee and other Advance = =
CIT Deposils - -
Other Deposits 20,136 28.500
VAT Credit - -
Less: Impairment - :
Tatal 20,136 28,500
MNote No. 4.3

Currenl Tax Assets

As at 315t Ashad

Asat 3lst Ashad

Particulars 077 5
Current Tax Asseis I
Advance Tax 440,732,009 23,349.08
Less: Tax Liabilities (1.065.619) (10,069)
Total Current Tax Assets 375,113 13,280
Taotal 375,113 13,280
Note No. 4.4
FProvisions

Particulars As at 31st Ashad As at 318t Ashad
= = 2077 2076
Short Term Provision
Employee Bonus Provision -
Property Tax Provision - -
Oiher Provisions 28.250 28,2350
Total Short Term Provision 28,250 28,250
Long Term Provision
Employee Medical Provision - -
Employee Leave Provision L
Employee Gratuity Provision 5 :
Total Long Term Provision = =
Total 28.250 28.250
MNote No. 4.5
Tax Liabilities (Fizures in NPR)

Particolars As at 31t Achad As at 31st Ashad

2077 2076

TDS Payable " -~ =R 2400
Total TDS Pavable = N = e L 5,400
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CBIL Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashad 2077

Note: 4.6
Share Capital (Figures in NPR)
Asat 31st Ashad As atl 31st Ashad
Particulars 2077 2076
Authorized capital;
1,000,000 ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 100,000,000 100,000,000
Issued capital: ) o
S00000 ordinary share of Rs.100 each _ 50,000,000 50,000,000
Subscribed and paid of capital: e = i
300000 ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 50,000,000 50,000,000
Total Paid Up Share Capital 50,000,000 30,000,000
MNote: 4.7
Reserves
As at 3ist Ashad As at 31st Ashad
Particulars 2077 2076
Retained Earnings 3,693,958 23,494
Other reserve & -
Total 3,693,958 23,494

@& &, =%
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CBIL Securifies Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashad 2077

Note: 4.8
Hevenue

{Figtres in NPR)

Farticulars

As at 31st Ashad
2077

As at 3st Ashad
2076

Sales
Trading Gain
Commission and Execution Fee
Interest Income
Other Income

4,783,012

155,661

Total

4,783,012

155,661

Note: 4.9
Other operating expense

Particulars

As at 31st Ashad
2077

As at 31st Ashad
2076

Directors' fee

Dircetors' expense

Auditors' remuneration

Orher audit related expense
Professional and legal expense
Office administration expense
Rental Expenses

Repair and Mintenance Expenses
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense
Fines and Penalties

Other

28,250

Total

122,098

MNote: 4.10
Income Tax

Particulars

As at 31st Ashad
2077

As at 3st Ashad
2076

Current Year Income Tax

(1,065,619)

(10,069)

Tatal

(1,065,619)

(10,069)

2
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CBIL Securities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year Ended 31" Ashadh, 2077 (July 15, 2020)

Reporting Entity

CBIL Securities Limited was incorporated on June 11, 2019 (Jestha 28, 2076) as public
company under the Companies Act, 2063. The principal activities of the Company are to
provide brokerage service related to securities, margin trading, investment in securities and
consultancy to its clients and other related services. Citizens Bank International Limited as
on date holds 100% controlling interest in the company.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of
accounting.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit
or Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to
the Accounts. The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of financial
statements are set out below in point number 3.

2.1. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the company which comprises components mentioned above
have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (hereafter
referred as NFRS) issued by Accounting Standards Board of Nepal, endorsed by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2063 and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the industry in
Nepal.

2.2. Reporting Period

Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan (mid July) of any year to the last
day of Ashadh (mid July) of the next year as per the Nepali calendar.

B Nepali Calendar English Calendar
Current Year 2076/77 2019/20

1" Shrawan 2076 to 17" July 2019 1o
Current Year Period 31" Ashadh 2077 15™ July 2020

‘Cﬁ_/ w}’ ! W
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2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of the company are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which
is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates.
Financial information is presented in Nepalese Rupees. The figures are rounded to nearest
integer, except otherwise indicated.

2.4. Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgment

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that are considered while reporting amounts of assets and liabilitics (including
contingent assets and liabilities) as of the date of the financial statements. Management
believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent
and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out below. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
certain accounting estimates. The areas where significant judgments and estimates have
been made in preparing the financial statements and their effects have been disclosed.

3.1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank accounts balances, highly liquid financial
assets with original maturity of 3 months from the date of its acquisition and are readily
convertible to cash, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and Cash equivalent are classified as financial assets and are measured at amortized
cost in the statement of financial position.

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the *Direct Method® in accordance
with NAS (3- Cash Flow Statements.

3.2. Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably
measured.

3.3. Share Capital and Reserves
a) Share Capital

The company classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities
in accordance with the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is
L

£
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defined as residual interest in total assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities.
Common shares are classified as equity of the company and distributions thereon are
presented in statement of changes in equity.

3.4. Earnings per share

EPS is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
company by number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

4. Related Party Disclosure

i. Related Party Disclosure of the company

The related parties of the company which meets the definition of related parties as
defined in “NAS 24 Related Party Disclosures™ are as follows:

al Key Management Personnel (KMP)
The key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility of planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity,
directly or indirectly including any director. The key management of the company
includes members of its Board of Directors. The name of the key management
personnel during the year were as follows:

Name of the Key Management Post Remarks
Personnel
Mr. Ramdhan Shrestha Chairman
Mr. Rajendra Lal Shrestha Former Director
Mr. Paras Kumar Kafle Former Director
Ms. Smita Pant Former Director
Mr. Suman Mulepati Director w.e.f 5" Ashwin, 2076
Mr. Roshan Manandhar Director w.e.F 5™ Ashwin, 2076
Ms. Akanksha Basnet Director w.e.f 5" Ashwin, 2076

b) The company has not made any payment towards compensation to Key
Management Persons as the operations has net commenced yeL

¢) Holding Company Shareholding %

Name and percentage of shareholding byHolding Company is as below:

Citizens Bank International Limited %\Jﬁﬁ"
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Transaction with Holding Company

Citizens Bank International Limited

Citizens Bank International Limited (herein after ‘the Bank’) has made investment
in share capital of the company. The Bank holds 100 % controlling interest in the
company. Similarly, the Bank had deputed the ACEQ as the Chairman and 3 senior
level staffs as Directors of the company.

The principal activities of the Bank is to provide all commercial Banking services
including agency services, trade finance services, e-commerce services and trading
of gold and silver, ete. to its customers through head office, branches, branchless
banking units and ATMs.

. The Bank has rented its building located in Kupondole, Lalitpur to the
Company with the agreement to pay Monthly Rent of NPR 60,000/~ after the
commencement of operation, which will be increased by 10% in every 2 year.

2. All receipt and payment transactions entered into by the company with the
Bank were made net of TDS.

3. The overall transactions with the Holding company included in Financial

Statements of the company has been tabulated below:

Particulars

NPR

Statement of Profit or
Loss

Interest Income

4,783,012

Total Income

4,783,012

Rent Paid

Total Expenses

Particulars

NPR

Statement of Financial
Position

Deposit in Holding
company

53,326,958
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5. Current Year Tax

Current year tax liability has been recognized on net profit at the rate of 30% after required
adjustment to arrive at taxable profit.

6. Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share, also called net income per share, is a market prospect ratio that
measures the amount of net income/ loss earned per share of stock outstanding. It is
calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

The earnings attributable to the ordinary equity holders consists of the earnings of the
company after deduction of all expenses including tax expense.

The calculation of basic earnings per share of the company has been based on the profit/
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and number of shares outstanding as tabulated
below:

Particulars 2076/77
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
NPR 3,670,465
MNumber of ordinary shares 500.000

Basic Earnings Per Share NPR

B 7
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JKB & Associates

Chartered Accountants Regd. No. - 435/069/70

Pepalbot-32, Dillibazar, Kathmandu, Nepal PAN No. - 600830818

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CBIL SECURITIES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
Wl:: have audited the accompanying financial statements of CBIL Securities Ltd.. which comprise the
Statement of Financial Position as at 31" Ashadh, 2078( 15"‘]u|y. 20213, and the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, Statement of changes in Equity and Statement of cash flows for the
vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give theinformation required byCompanies Act 2063 in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our Report. We are independent of the Companyin accordance with the JCAN's
Handhook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
aur opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our audit opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined, assessed that
there are no other key audit matters to be communicated in our audit report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditer’s Report Thereon

The management of CBIL Securities Ltd.are responsible for the other information.Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomesavailable and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledgeobtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein of this
other information, we are requiredto report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Mobile No: 9851062276, E-mail: jkb.associates2012@gmail.com
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Managemem is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Mepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Owir objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstaternent can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

® ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Com pany to cease to continue as
4 going concem,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements. including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is !hel magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it prub&hlle that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
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planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. We communicate with those charged
with govermnance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Further report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

On the basis of our examination, we would like to report that:

The Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income,

the Statement of Cash Flow, the Statement of Changes in Equity andattached notes to account dealt with

by this report are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS), Companies

Act 2063 and are in agreement with thebooks of account maintained by the company.

i, We have obtained all the information and explanations, which were considered necessary for the
purpose for our audit.

ii. Financial Statements are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the Company.

iii. So far as it appears from our examination, books of accounts are properly maintained in
accordance with the prevailing laws.

i So far as it appears from our examination, we have not come across cases where the Board of
Directors or any member thereof or any representative or any office holder or any emplovee of the
company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Company.

V. The operations of the company were within its jurisdiction,

vi. We have not come across any fraudulence in the accounts, so far as it appeared from our
examination of the books of accounts.

Jiwan Kumar'B
Froprietor
JKB & Associates

Chartered Accountants

UDIN: ofi0P31cAcPecsN3Ipts

Flace: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 15" Bhadra 2078
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CBIL Securities Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 315t Ashadh 2078 (15th July 2021)

Figures in NPR
As at As al

3st Ashadh 2078 31st Asbad 2077

Nore

ASSETS
Currenl Assets:
Cush and Cash Equivalents 4.1 56,271,924 53,326,058
Trade and Other Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid and Deposits 4.2 8,598 20,136
COther Asscls - =
Current Tax Assets 4.3 01,059 375,113
Total Current Assets 56,781,881 53,722,208
Mon-Current Assets:
Property, Plant and Equiment
Intangible Asscls
Deferred Tax Asscts
Totnl Non-Current Asscts % =
Total Assets 56,781,881 53,722,208

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Linbilities
Current Liabilities:
Trade and Other Payables
Prepaid and Deposits Liabilities
Provisions 4.4 56,500 28,250
Current Tax Lisbilities .
Total Current Linbilities 56,500 28,250
Non-Current Liabilitics:
Provisions
Other liabilities 4.5 % i
Deferred Government Grant
Total Non-Current Liabilities = =
Total Liabilities 56,500 18,250

Equity
Share Capital 4.6 50,000,000 50,000,000
Retained Eamings 47 6,725,381 3,693,958
Reserves

Total Equity 56,725,381 53,693,958

Total Liabilities and Equity 56,781,881 53,722,208

The sccompanying notes are integral parl of these financial statements,

iﬁ?

{Anshish Koiraka)
Finance Officer

{Suman Mulepati) {Ramdhan Sl a)
Dhrector Chairman

Daee;  26th August, 2021
Place: Knthmandu, Mepal
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CBIL Securities Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the Year ended 315t Ashadh 2078 (15th July 2021}

Not Year ended Year ended
e Jist Ashad 2078  31st Ashad 2077
Eoevenue LA
Trading Gain - -
Commission pnd Execution Fee - -
Interest Incame 15606,018 4,783,012
Other Income - -
Total Revenue 3,606,018 4,783,012
Depreciation and Amontisation
Personnel Expenses
Oher operating expenss 4.9 (39,638) {46,928}
Profit from Operation 3,566,380 4,736,083
Finance Income
Profit Before Tax 3,566,380 4,736,083
Income Tax Expense
Curmrent Tax 4§ (534,957 {1,065,619)
Deferred Tax Credit/Charge
Profit for the year 3,031,423 3,670,465

Dther comprehensive Income:
rther comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
i. Re-measurement (losses) / gaing on post

emulovment defined benefit olans
i1, Tax relating to items that will not to be

reclassified to profit or loss

Ciher comprebensive gain/{loss) for the year, nct of tax - -

Tatal Comprehensive gain/{loss) for the year, net of tax 3,031,423 3,670,465

Earnings per equily share of Rs. 100 each

Basic Enrmings per share - Rs. 6.06 T34
Diiluted Enrnings per share - Rs; 61,06 T34

The accompanying notes are  integral part of these Nnancial statements

{Aashish Koirala)
Finance Officer

(Suman Mulepati)
Director Chairman

Date: 26th August, 202|
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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CRBIL Securities Limited
Sintement of Cash Flows
Far ithe Year ended 30si Aakadh 2078 {15ih July 2021}
Fl!“ilm
Year ended Year ended
AlsiAshad T8 3wl Ashed 7T
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES

Sales reverniie -

Cther Incame

Finance Income

Receipts from other operating activines - u
Cash payment to employees

Oeher expense paid (IS EXE. 1) {46,928 13}
Oiperaling cash Mows before changes in operating suety and Oabilities (39638, 14) {46.92R.23)

{lecronse )l Thecrrase in apsraling sisely

Tende amd Odber Fecorvable

Inventores

Prepaid and Deposas

Cher Asseis (114,707,58) (353,450 87)

1 AL I in aperating Rabifivie

Trende and Otbver Payables

Prepaid and Deposizs

Chther Linbudsdics 28 250,00 i 5400 1K)
Met cash Mow frem operating acibviibes before inx paid (116, 008.71) | 406, TRE09)
Inenme lnxes paid (534,937 04§ 11,065 618.74

Met cash flow froms op H!.Iﬂih-hin (66 1,B51.T5) (14714 16.83)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase af progeriy, Prant and equspmieni :
Procends from the sale of property, Plant and eguuprment

Aogguisition of intongibde assets

Puschase of mvestmend properties

Procoeds from the mle of investment propetics

Araemest received 1,606,018 38 4. TERG | 0
Ned casls used in investing sciivities J.606,015.35 4. TR0 150

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from issue of shares B

nher recepit/payment = z
Ned cush from Mnascing sctlviiles . -

Net lmcrease (devrenie] In caak amd cash dquivalenis I, 744, 965.63 IANESNLET
spenang Cush and cash oguivabents m | Shrawan % 338 95k 40 100536372
Effect of exchange rate flachutions on cash ond cash equivalents held -
Cash wnd ek eguivalents st Assdh end 56,270, 524.02 B3 31605040

. E g
._'\F
{#nshish Koarala) {Akanksha i
Finance Odficer Derecior
L]
1% {Ramdhan 5
Drector Churman

Dite: 26th Augest, 202§
Flace: Kathmandu, Mepal

s Ufddeat 20To




CHIL Securities Limited

Stmiement of Chasges i Equity
For the Vear rmded 30u Asbodh 1078 [154h July 2021}

Flgare in NP
Astribwiable to equity holders of the Enqnly
Share Cajsitsd Hevuisation Rrserve Hesalned carning S L
i .6l
Capital Introdured A M 0y
Falance an at 1o Bhrawan 2076 LR AN
Profid Tor tae yaar 3670468
Diberr comprehensive incoase, ned of tax
Bemeaserement of defined henefls habaliny |esset)
Mt e | oen) on revabetion
Tuoral Caim prebeasive sconie for e year 3670465
Transfer io ivserve durisg the prar -
Tranafer from reserve during the year s
Balance pt 11 Avad 3077 S0, HHR, D] = 346009559 - SX,6%1.959
Balance s af 1ni Shrawan DJOTT 20 (WMD) = 3,693,959 = 53,693.95%

Fredii for the yenr 1031428
Lriher ¢omprrhensive income, net of o
Remesssrement of defined benefit labslity {asse)
Nef g { loss) on Fevelussion
Tatal Camprebensive incsme for the year 3,051 423
Transfer bs reserve during the year -
Transfer from vestrve durig s vear
Malsnce ni 11 Ashadk 2078

Dhrecrisr

Dhate; Béahy Augur, 3021
Flace: Kathmandh, Mopal
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CBIL Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2078

MNote No. 4.1
Cash and Cash Equivalents {Figures in NPR)
r As at As at
Farticulars 31st Ashadh 2078 31st Ashadh 2077
Cash in hand = =
Cheque in Hand - -
Balance with B/Fls 171,924 3,326,958
3 Month Fixed Deposit with B/Fls 56,100,000 50,000,000
Other il =
Total 56,271,924 53,326,958
Mote No. 4.2
Prepaid and Deposits
As at As at 31st Ashad
Particulars 3st Ashadh 2078 2077
Employee and other Advance - -
CIT Deposits - -
Other Deposits 8,898 20,136
VAT Credit -
Less: Impairment -
Total 8,898 20,136
Mote No. 4.3
Current Tax Assets
As at As at 31st Ashad
Particulars 31st Ashadh 2078 2077
Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax 1,036,016 1,440,732
Less: Tax Liabilities (534,957) {1,065,619)
Total Current Tax Assets 501,059 375,113
Total 501,059 375,113
MNote No. 4.4
Provisions
As at As at 31st Ashad
Particulars 31st Ashadh 2078 2077
Short Term Provision
Employee Bonus Provision - -
Property Tax Provision - -
Other Provisions 56500 28,250
Total Short Term Provision 56,500 28,250
Long Term Provision
Employee Medical Provision - -
Employee Leave Provision - -
Employee Gratuity Provision - ,
Total Long Term Provision - -
Total 56,500 28,250
Note No. 4.5
Tax Liabilities
As at As at 31st Ashad
Particulars Ast Ashadh 2078 2077
TDS Payahble = &
Total TDS Payablg., / N -

_ B et S
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CBIL Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2078

MNote: 4.6
Share Capital (Figures in NFR)
As at As at
Particulars 31 7 1st Ashadh 2077
Authorized capital:
1,000,000 ordinary share of Rs.100 each 100,000,000 100,000,000
Issued capital: -
300000 ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 50,000,000 50,000,000
Subscribed and paid of capital: .
500000 ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 50,000,000 50,000,000
Total Paid Up Share Capital 50,000,000 50,000,000
Mote: 4.7
Reserves
As at As at
Particulars 31st Ashadh 2078 31st Ashadh 2077
Retained Earnings 6,725,381 3,693,958
Other reserve - -
Total 6,725,381 3,693,958

g,/%i'ﬁf \
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CBIL Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st Ashadh 2078

MNote: 4.8
Revenoe {Figures in NPR)
Az at As at
Particulars J1st Ashadh 2078 31st Ashadh 2077
Sales
Trading Gain & ,
Commission and Execution Fee - -
Interest Income 3.606,018 4,783,012
Other Income n -
Total 3,606,018 4,783,012
Mote: 4.9
Other operating expense
As at As at
Particulars 31st Ashadh 2078 31st Ashadh 2077
Directors' fee - -
Directors’ expense - .
Auditors' remuneration 28,250 28,250
Other audit related expense - =
Professional and legal expense - -
Office administration expense 11,238 15918
Rental Expenses - =
Repair and Mintenance Expenses - -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense
Fines and Penalties - -
Other 150 2,760
Total 39,638 46,928
Note: 4.10
Income Tax
As at As at
Particulars Jlst Ashadh 2078 3l1st Ashadh 2077

Current Year Income Tax

(534,957) (1,065,619)

Total /

(534,957) (1,065,61%)




1.

CBIL Securities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year Ended 31*Ashadh, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Reporting Entity

CBIL Securities Limited was incorporated on June 11, 2019 (Jestha 28, 2076) as public
company under the Companies Act, 2063. The principal activities of the Company are to
provide brokerage service related to securities, margin trading, investment in securities and
consultancy to its clients and other related services. Citizens Bank International Limited as
on date holds 100% controlling interest in the company.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of
accounting.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit
or Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to
the Accounts. The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of financial
statements are set out in point number 3.

2.1. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the company which comprises components mentioned above
have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (hereafter
referred as NFRS) issued by Accounting Standards Board of Nepal, endorsed by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2063 and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the industry in
Nepal,

2.2. Reporting Period

Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan (mid July) of any year to the last
day of Ashadh (mid July) of the next year as per the Nepali calendar.

Nepali Calendar English Calendar
Current Year 2077/78 2020/21

1* Shrawan 2077 to 16" July 2020 1o
Current Year Period 31* Ashadh 2078 15" July 2021

2 & L1 =%
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2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of the company are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which
is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates.
Financial information is presented in Nepalese Rupees. The figures are rounded to nearest
integer, except otherwise indicated.

2.4, Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgment

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that are considered while reporting amounts of assets and liabilities (including
contingent assets and liabilities) as of the date of the financial statements. Management
believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent
and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

3.  Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out below. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
certain accounting estimates. The areas where significant judgments and estimates have
been made in preparing the financial statements and their effects have been disclosed.

3.1, Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank accounts balances, highly liquid financial
assets with original maturity of 3 months from the date of its acquisition and are readily
convertible to cash, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and Cash equivalent are classified as financial assets and are measured at amortized
cost in the statement of financial position.

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Direct Method® in accordance
with NAS 03- Cash Flow Statements.
3.2. Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow 1o the company and the revenue can be reliably
measured.

3.3. Share Capital and Reserves
a) Share Capital

The company classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities
in accordance with the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is

P N
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4.

defined as residual interest in total assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities.
Common shares are classified as equity of the company and distributions thereon are
presented in statement of changes in equity.

3.4. Earnings per share

EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
company by number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Related Party Disclosure

i. Related Party Disclosure of the company

The related parties of the company which meets the definition of related parties as
defined in “NAS 24 Related Party Disclosures” are as follows:

a) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
The key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility of planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity,
directly or indirectly including any director. The key management of the company
includes members of its Board of Directors. The name of the key management
personnel during the year were as follows:

Name of the Key Management Post
Personnel

Mr. Ramdhan Shrestha Chairman
Mr. Suman Mulepati Director
Mr. Roshan Manandhar Director
Ms. Akanksha Basnet Director

b) The company has not made any payment towards compensation to Key
Management Persons as the operations has not commenced yet.

c) Holding Company Shareholding %

Name and percentage of shareholding byHolding Company is as below:

Citizens Bank International Limited 100%

| s Ufdgal 20TO




Transaction with Holding Company

Citizens Bank International Limited

Citizens Bank International Limited (herein after ‘the Bank') has made investment
in share capital of the company. The Bank holds 100 % controlling interest in the
company. Similarly, the Bank had deputed the ACEO as the Chairman and 3 senior
level staffs as Directors of the company.

The principal activities of the Bank is to provide all commercial Banking services
including agency services, trade finance services, e-~commerce services and trading
of gold and silver, etc. to its customers through head office, branches, branchless
banking units and ATMs.

1. The Bank has rented its building located in Kupondole, Lalitpur to the
Company with the agreement to pay Monthly Rent of NPR 60,000/- after the
commencement of operation, which will be increased by 10% in every 2 year.

2. All receipt and payment transactions entered into by the company with the
Bank were made net of TDS,

3. The overall transactions with the Holding company included in Financial
Statements of the company has been tabulated below:

Particulars NPR
Statement of Profit or Loss

Interest Income 3,606,018
Total Income 3,606,018
Rent Paid s
Total Expenses -
Particulars NPR

Statement of Financial Position
Deposit in Holding company

T N
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Current Year Tax

Current year tax liability has been recognized on net profit at the rate of 15% after required
adjustment of waiver of 50% in rate of tax provided by Finance Act to arrive at taxable
profit.

Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share, also called net income per share, is a market prospect ratio that
measures the amount of net income/ loss earned per share of stock outstanding. It is
calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

The earnings attributable to the ordinary equity holders consist of the earnings of the
company after deduction of all expenses including tax expense.

The calculation of basic earnings per share of the company has been based on the profit/
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and number of shares outstanding as tabulated
below:

Particulars 2077/78
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
NPR 3,031,423
Number of ordinary shares 500,000
Basic Earnings Per Share NPR 6.06

2 8 Lt X
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Anamnagar, Kathmandu

e _ . 29 Prapatim i E ha
S|s&~rimu[mr Associates s FEOMPANITE I THRUMBREAn

Chartered Accountants Mepal

Tel: +97 715705202
Email; Info@saca.com.np
Wehsite: www.saca.com.np

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of C.B.1.L. Securities Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of C.B.LL. Securities Limited (the Company},
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 32~ Ashad 2079, and the Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the
period then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and Notes to Accounts,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 327 Asadh 2079, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
period then ended in accordance with Mepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountanis 2018 together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters, We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate
in our report.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the annual report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Such information is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, I'."L'I'I!Eil.iETF er the other information is
550,
-*_%'1 f'i‘"‘ala\. .
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Anamnagar, Kathmandu
Chartered Accountants Nepal

S %"‘I]ﬂlﬂiﬂr gﬁﬁﬂf[ﬂlfﬁ 29, Pragatimarg, Hanumansthan

Tel: +97 715705202
Email; info@saca.com.np

Website: www.saca.com.np

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such information, if we concdude: that there is o0 material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with MNepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Owur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staternents.

As a part of audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risk of material misstaternent of the financial statement whether due to fraud or
errof, design and perform audit procedure responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide an opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaterment
resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability fnpg as a going concern. If we
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< Anamnagar, Kathmandu
Chartered Accountants

S éhﬂ"[iﬂr gﬁﬂﬂ“ﬂi?ﬁ 29, Pragatimarg, Ranumansthan

Nepal

Tel: +97 715705202
Emaily info@saca comunp
Website: www. saca.com.np

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Gur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continuie as going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As per the requirement of the Companies Act, 2063, we also report that:

i. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpoese of our audit.

ii. In our opinion, the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

iii. In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of such books,

iv. To the best of our information and according to explanations provided to us and from our examination
of the books of accounts of the Company, necessary for the purpose of our audit, we have not come
across cases where the Board of Directors or the representatives or any employee of the Company has
acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to accounts or committed any misappropriation or
caused loss or damage to the Company.

LIDIN: 220831 CAD9T4HFe] T

Shankar Associates,
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu
Date; Bhadra 1, 2079
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C.B.1.L. Securities Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 32nd Ashadh 2079 (16th July 2022)

Flgures in NFR
Note As at As at
3lnd Ashadh 2079 st Ashudh 2078
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivabents d. 59,921,525 56,271,924
Trade and Other Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid and Deposits 42 - 8,898
Other Assets
Current Tax Assets 43 221,155 501,050
Total Current Assets 60,142,680 56,781,881
MNon-Current Assets:
Property, Plant and Equiment
Intangible Assets
Deferred Tax Assets
Total Non-Current Asscis - -
Total Assets 60,142,680 56,781,881
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Current Linbdities:
Trade and Other Payables
Propaid and Deposits Liabilities
Provisions 44 B4, 750 £6,500
Current Tux Liabilities 2
Total Current Linbilitics B4,750 56,500
Non-Currvent Liabilities:
Provisiomns
Oither liahilities 4.5 -
Deferred Government Grant
Total Mon-Current Liabilities - =
Total Liabilities B4, 750 56,500
Equity
Share Capital 46 50,000,000 50,000, 000
Retnined Earnings 4.7 10,087 930 5,725,381
Reserves
Total Equity 60,057,930 56,725,381
Total Liabilities and Equity 60,142,680 56,781,881

The sccompanying notes are. integral part of these financial statements

{ Aashish Koirala)
Finance Officer

M "
%] 4]
[ € g
X .""
e 3
As per of even dote g pcc®

(Sul Mullepati) {Shankar Thapa, FCA)
Director Pariner
Shankar Associates,
Chartered Accountanis

Date: Bhade 1, 2079
Pluce: Kothmandu, Nepal
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C.B.LL. Securities Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the period from Shrawan 15t 2078 to 32nd Ashadh 2079 (16th July 2021 to 16th July 2623)

Figures in NFR
Note As at A al
! 32nd Ashadb 2079 31st Ashadh 2078
Revenue 44
Coammission and Execution Fee
Interest Income 4,798 815 1606018
Other Income: 758 -
Total Revenue 4799573 3006018
Depreciation and Amortisation
Personnel Expenses
Other operating expense 4.9 (37.294) (39,638)
Profit from Operation 4,762,278 3,566,380
Profit Before Tax 4,762,275 3,566,380

Income Tax Expense

Current Tax 400 (1,429 726) {534,957
Deferred Tax Credit/Charge

Profit for the year 3,332,549 3,031,423
Other comprehensive Income:
Other comprehensive Income that may be i =

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive Ineome that will not be = =
reclassified to profit or loss in subscquent periods

1. Re-measurement (losses) / gains on post
employment defined benefit plans
ii. Tux relating to items that will not 1o be reclassified
to peofit or loss

Other comprebensive gain/{loss) for the year, netof tax L =

Total Comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax 3332549 3,031,423

Earnings per equity share of Rs, 100 each
Basic Earnings per share - Ra. 6.67 6.06
Diluted Earnings per share - Rs. 66T 606

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financinl statements,

(Anshish Koirala) (Ak asnet)
Finanee Officer i r

As per report of even date

(Suman Mulepati) (Shankar Thapa, FCA)
Director Partner
Shunkar Associates,
Chartered Acoountants

Date: Bhadra 1, 2079
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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C.B.L.L. Securities Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 32nd Ashodh 2079 (16th July 2022)

Figures In NPR

Az at

As at

s Ufddeat 20To

32nd Ashadh 2072 31st Ashadh 2078

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Sales revenue

Oither Income

Receipts from other operating activities

Cash payment to employecs.

Cither expense paxd

Operating cush Mows before changes in operating asseis and Habilities

{Increase)Decrease in opernting nssets
Trade and Other Receivables

Inventaries

Prepaid and Deposits

Oher Assets

Increase{Decrease) in operating linbilities

Trade and Other Payabies

Prepaid and Deposits

Other Liabilities

Net cash Mlow from operating uctivities before tax paid
Income taxes paid

4,799 573 JA06 018

(37,298 (39.638)

4,762,275 3,566,380

288,302 (114,708)

28,250 28,250

5,079,327 34734923

(1,429,726) (534,957

Net cush flaw from operating activities

3,649,601 2,944,966

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, Plant and equipment

Proceeds from the sale of property, Plant and cquipment
Acquisition of intangible assets

Purchase of fnvestment properties

Proceeds from the sale of investment propertics

Interest received

Net cazh used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from issue of shares
DOther recenit/payment

Net cash from fnancing activities

Met incrense (decrease) in cash and ensh equivalents
Opening Cash and cash cquivalents at | Shrawan

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

3,645,601 2,944,966
56,271 924 53,326 958

Cash and cash equivalenis at Asadb end

59,911,518 56,271,924

[ ish Koimla)
Fance Oficer

(Surman Mulepati)
Diirector

Date:Bhadra 1, 2079
Place; Kathmandy, Nepal

As per report of even date
{Shankar Thapa, FCA)
Partner
Shankar Associates,
Chartered Accountants




C.B.LL, Securities Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
Far the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079 (16th July 2022)

Figures in NPR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
wation Tatal
Share Capital s Retaimed earning Other reserve .
Balance ws af 15t Shrawan 2077 ST, D, DI} 3,593,959 53,603,950
Profit for the year 3031423 001,423
Other comprehensive income, net of tux . -
Total Comprehensive income for the vear 3,031,425 3031423
Transfer fo reserve during the year - -
Transfer from reserve during the year - -
Balance ot 31 Ashadh 2078 S0, 00000 - 6,725,382 - 56,715 382
Balnance as at 15t Shrawan 1078 50,000,000 6,728.382
Profit for the year 3,331,549
Orher comprehensive meome, et of -
Total Comprehensive income for the vear 3,332,549
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer fram reserve during the year <
Balance ai 32nd Ashadh 2079 0,000, (60 = 10,057,930 - 60,657,950

@’

(Asshish Kodrala)
Finance Officer

(Surman Mulepari )
Diirector

Dhate: Bhadra |, 2079
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
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C.B.LL. Securities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 32" Ashadh, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

1. Reporting Entity

CBIL Securities Limited was incorporated on June 11, 2019 (Jestha 28, 2076) as public company under the
Companies Act, 2063. The principal activities of the Company are to provide brokerage service related 1o
securities, margin trading, investment in securities and consultancy to its clients and other related services.
Citizens Bank International Limited as on date holds 100% controlling interest in the company,

2. Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting,

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and Significant
Accounting Policies and Motes to the Accounts. The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of financial statements are set out in point number 3.

1.1. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the company which comprises components mentioned above have been prepared
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (hereafter referred as NFRS) issued by Accounting
Standards Board of Nepal, endorsed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Mepal and in compliance
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063 and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the
industry in Nepal,

2.2. Reporting Period

Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan (mid July) of any year to the last day of Ashadh
(mid July) of the next year as per the Nepali calendar.

Nepali Calendar English Calendar
Current Year 207879 2021/22
Previous Year 2077/78 2020121

1"Shrawan2078 to 16" July 2021 10
Current Year Period 32" Ashadh 2079 16" July 2022

1st Shrawan 2077 to I6thluly 2020 to
Previous Year Period 31st Ashadh 2078 15thJuly 2021

2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of the company are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the company operates. Financial information is presented in
Nepalese Rupees. The figures are rounded to nearest integer, except otherwise indicated,

2.4. Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgment

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that are
considered while reporting amounts of assets and liabilities {(including contingent assets and liabilities) as of
the date of the financial statements. Management belicves that the estimates used in the preparation of the
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in current and future periods.
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C.B.LL. Securities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 32" Ashadh, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are set
out below. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates. The areas
where significant judgments and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements and their
effiects have been disclosed.

3.1. Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured,

3.2, Income Taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current taxes and deferred taxes. Income tax is
recognized in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly to equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the balance sheet
date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous YEArs,

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected on realization ar
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that fiture taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized, Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
langer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

3.3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank accounts balances, highly liguid financial assets with
original maturity of 3 months from the date of its acquisition and are readily convertible to cash, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Cash and Cash equivalent are classified as financial assets and are measured at amortized cost in the
staternent of financial position.

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Direct Method® in accordance with NAS 07- Cash
Flow Statements.

3.4. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

3.5, Share Capital and Reserves
a) Share Capital

The company classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities in accordance with
the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in total
assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities, Common shares are classified as equity of the company
and distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.

3.6. Earnings per share

EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the company by
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period,
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C.B.LL. Securities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079 (July 16, 2022)

4.1, Cash and Cash Equivalents {Figures in NPR)
Asal
Asai
Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2079 3lst Ashadh 2078
Cash in hand
Cheque in Hand
Balance with B/Fls 171,525 171,924
Fixed Deposit with B/Fls 59,750,000 56, 100,000
Cither
Total 59,921,525 56,271,924
4.1, Prepaid and Deposits
As @i32nd Ashadh Az ai
Pariicnine 2079 31t Ashadh 2078
Employee and other Advance
CIT Deposits
Other Deposits 8 898
VAT Credit
Less: Impairment
Tuotal - B.E08
4.3, Current Tax Assets
" As at32nd Ashadh Asal
Pabeiiis 2070 31st Ashadh 2078
Current Tax Assels
Advance Tax 1,645 610 1,036,016
Less: Tax Libilities (1,428 455) (534,957)
Total Current Tax Assets 221,155 501,059
Total 221,155 301,059
4.4. Provisions
As atdInd Ashadh As al
Particalars 2079 31st Ashadh 2078
Short Term Provishon
Employes Bonus Provision
Property Tax Provision
Oiher Provisions §4,750 56,500
Total Short Term Provision B4, 750 £6,500
Long Term Provision
Employes Medical Provision
Emploves Leave Provision
Employee Gratuity Provision
Total Long Term Provision
Total B4,750 56,500
4.5, Tax Liabilities
As utdZnd Ashadh As at
Farticolars 2079 315t Ashadh 2078
TI¥ Payable - =
Total TDS Payable = =

€
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C.B.LL. Securities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079 (July 16, 2022)

4.6, Share Capital (Figures in NPR)
As at As at

Particulars 32nd Ashadh 2079  31st Ashadh 2078
Authorized capital;
1,000,000 ordinary share of Rs.100 each 100,000,000 100,000,000
Issued capital:
500000 ordinary share of Rs.100 each 50,000,000 50,000,000
Subscribed and paid of capital:
500000 ordinary share of Rs.100 each 50,000,000 50,000,000
Total Paid Up Share Capital 50,000,000 50,000,000
4.7. Reserves

As at 32nd Ashadh As at
Particulars 2079 Alst Ashadh 2078
Retained Eamings 10,057,930 6,725,381
Other reserve -
Total 10,057,930 6,725,381

@&
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C.B.L.L. Securities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079 (July 16, 2022)

4.8. Revenue (Figures in NPR)
As at As at

Particulars 32nd Ashadh 79 31st Ashadh 2078
Sales

Commission and Execution Fee

Interest Income 4,798,815 3.606,018

Other Income 758 =
Total 4,799,573 3,606,018

4.9, Other operatin g expense

As at 32nd Ashadh As at
Particulars 79 315t Ashadh 2078
Directors' fee
Directors’ expense
Auditors' remuneration 28,250 28,250

Other audit related expense

Professional and legal expense

Office administration expense 8,898 11,238
Rental Expenses

Repair and Mintenance Expenses

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense

Fines and Penalties

Other 150 150
Tuotal 37,298 39,638

4.10. Income Tax

As at 32nd Ashadh As at
Particulars 79 31st Ashadh 2078
Current Year Income Tax (1,429,726) (534,957}
Adjustments For Prior Years
Total (1,429,726) (534,957) -
[
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C.B.LL. Securities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 32™'Ashadh, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

5. Disclosures and Additional Notes
5.1 Related Party Disclosure

i.  Related Party Disclosure of the compa ny

The related parties of the company which meets the definition of related parties as defined in “NAS 24
Related Party Disclosures” are as follows:

@) Key Management Personnel (KMF)
The key management personnel are those persans having authority and responsibility of planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including any director. The
key management of the company includes members of its Board of Directors. The name of the key
management personnel during the year were as follows:

Name of the Key Management Personnel  Post

Mr. Ramdhan Shrestha Chairman
Mr. Suman Mulepati Director
Mr. Roshan Manandhar Director
Ms. Akanksha Basnet Director

&) The company has not made any payment towards compensation to Key Management Persons as the
operations has not commencedyet,

¢} Holding Company Shareholding %
Name and percentage of sharcholding byHolding Company is as below:
Citizens Bank International Limited 100%
Transaction with Holding Company

Citizens Bank International Limited

Citizens Bank International Limited (herein after ‘the Bank") has made investment in share capital of
the company. The Bank holds 100 % controlling interest in the company. Similarly, the Bank had
deputed the ACEO as the Chairman and 3 senior level staffs as Directors of the company,

The principal activities of the Bank is to provide all commercial Banking services including agency
services, trade finance services, e-commerce services and trading of gold and silver, ete. 1o its
customers through head office, branches, branchless banking units and ATMs.

1. The Bank has rented its building located in Kupondole, Lalitpur to the Company with the
agreement to pay Monthly Rent of NPR 60,000/- after the commencement of operation, which
will be increased by 10% in every 2 year.

2. All receipt and payment transactions entered into by the company with the Bank were made
net of TDS.

3. The overall transactions with the Holding company included in Financial Statements of the
company has been tabulated below: .
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C.B.LL. Securities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 32" Ashadh, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Particulars NPR
Statement of Profit or Loss

Interest Income 4,798,815
Total Income 4,795,815
Rent Paid -
Total Expenses .
Particulars NPR
Statement of Financial Position

Deposit in Holding company 59,921,525

5.2Current Year Tax

Current year tax liability has been recognized on net profit at the rate of 30% to arrive at taxable profit,
5.3 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share, also called net income per share, is a market prospect ratio that measures the amount of
net income/ loss eamed per share of stock outstanding. It is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to
ordinary equity holders by the average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period,

The earnings attributable to the ordinary equity holders consist of the eamings of the company after deduction
of all expenses including tax expense.

The caleulation of basic eamings per share of the company has been based on the profit/ loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and number of shares outstanding as tabulated below:;

Particulars Z078/79
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders NPR 3,332,549
MNumber of ordinary shares 500,000
Basic Earnings Per Share NPR 6.67
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Anamnagar, Kathmardu

= - . 29, Pragatimarg, Hanumansthan
S Shankar Associales el e

Chartered Accountanits Nepal

Tel: +57 715705202

Email: info&

Website: www. saca.com.np

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of C.B.LL. Securities Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of C.B.LL. Securities Limited (the Company),
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31% Ashad 2080, and the Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the
period then ended, and notes to the financal statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and MNotes to Accounts.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31* Asadh 2080, and its financdial performance and its cash flows for the
period then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Awdilor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Staterents section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal's Code of Ethics for Professivnal Accountants 2018 together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the finandial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate
in our report.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the annual report but
does not include the financial staternents and our auditor's report thereon. Such information is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial staterments, our responsibility is to read the other informatiog

mar Associotes
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Anamnagar, Kathmandu
Chartered Accountants

S %1]1"1““: qggﬂ'[[1tf5 29, Pragatimarg, Hanumansthan
2 L -~ L

Nepal

Tel: +87715705202
Email: info@saca.com.np
Website: www.saca.com.np

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such information, it we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As a part of audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statement whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedure responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide an opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

registerad with Inland Revenue Department with Permanent Account Number [PAN) 608307253,
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conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As per the requirement of the Companies Act, 2063, we also report that:

i. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

ii. In our opinion, the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

iii. In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of such books.

iv. To the best of our information and according to explanations provided to us and from our examination
of the books of accounts of the Company, necessary for the purpose of our audit, we have not come
across cases where the Board of Directors or the representatives or any employee of the Company has
acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to accounts or committed any misappropriation or
caused loss or damage to the Company.

CA. Shankar Thapa, FCA
Partner,

Shankar Associates,
Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 230905CA00914bkSdA

Place: Kathmandu
Date: Bhadra 13, 2080

Page 3 of 3

Shankar Assaciates Chartered Accountants ls a partnership firm registered with Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal {FCAN) with registration number 604 and is
registered with Inland Revenue Department with Permanent Account Number (PAN) 6089072583
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CBIL Securities Limited
Statement of Financial Position
Asx at 3st Ashadh 2080 (16th July 2023)

Figures in NPR

Asat Asat

Note 1
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash und Cosh LEquivalents 4.1 216,741,459 59,921,525
I'rade and Other Receivobles - =
Inventorics 4.2 LR -
Prepaid and Deposits 4.3 95,830 -
Other Assets - -
Current Tax Assels €4 SE1.304 221,155
Tutal Current Assets 218,418,467 G, 142,680
Mon-Current Assets:
Property, Plant and Equiment 4.5 2,789,800 &
Intangible Assets - -
Deferred Tax Assets . -
Total Non-Current Assels 2, 7TR9. 800 -
Total Assers 221,208,267 60,142,680
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Trude and Other Payables - .
Prepaid and Deposits Liabilities - .
Provisions 4.6 137,223 84,750
Current Tax Liabilities . .
Total Current Liabilities 137,223 54,750
Mon-Current Linbilities:
Prowisions
Othier labilifics 47 28,672 .
D ferred Government Grant
Total Non-Current Linbilities 25672 -
Total Liabilities 165,895 84,750
Equity
Share Capital 4.8 200,000, (1) S0, )
Retained Eamings 4.9 21,042,372 10,057,930
Reserves
Total Equity 221,042,372 60,057,930
Total Liabilities and Equity 221,208,267 6, 142,680
The pecompanying notes are integral part of these fnancial statements,
L

Ge>

{Aashish Koirila) {Siju Shakya)
Finonce Officer Director

c.BL "'\JW
cLRLTIES |:

{ Ramdhan Syrestha) L e ‘ﬂ::n-_’.i':mun Bajracharyi)
3 P A S
I¥rector \'.’ _'—I"__._, 4 Chuirmun

e,
(A -
B "

e

Dare: Bhadrea 13, 2080
Mace: Kathmuandu, Nepal

{ Srijesh Gyawali)
Drirector

As perreport of even date
Shankar Thapa, FCA
Partner
Shankar Associntes,
Chartered Accountanis
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CBIL Securities Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the Period from shrawan 1st 2079 to 315t Ashadh 2080 (17th July 2022 10 16th July 2023)

Figures in NPR

—_— Az at
A % J ih
¢ 31st Ashadh 2080 S Ashac
2079
Revenue 400
Interest Income 17,785,516 4,798,815
Other Income 5,000 T58
Total Revenue 17,793,516 4,799,573
Depreciation and Amortisation
Personnel Expenses 444 (041.250) -
Other operating expense 442 (1.460,205) (37.298)
Prafit from Operation 15.692.060 4,762,175
Finince Income
Profit Before Tax 15,492,060 4,762,275
Income Tax Expense
Current Tax 4.3 (4, 707.618) (1. 429.726)
Deterred Tax CrediCharge
Profit for the vear 10,984,442 3,332,549
2=

Other comprehensive Income:

Other comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

i. Rie-measurement (losses) ( gains on post
employment defined benefit plans

il. Tax relating to items that will not to be

reclassified 1o profit or loss

Other comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax

Total Comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax

Earnings per equity share of Rs, 100 cach

Basic Earmings per share - Rs.

Diluted Earnings per share - Rs,

10,984,442 3,332,549
349 6.67
5.49 b7

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

o2

{Aashish Koirala)
Finance Officer

{Ramdhan Shrestha)
Director

Date: Bhadra |3, 2080
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

{Siju Shakya)

G

(Saptaman Bajrucharya) AL per repao even date

ok

(Srijesh Gyaswali)
Director

Shankar Thapa, FCA
Fartner
Shankar Associales,
Chantered Accountants
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CBIL Securities Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year ended 315t Ashadh 080 | 16th Joly 2023)

Figures in NPR
Asal Asal

Jst Ashadh 2080 32nd Ashadh 2079
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Sakes rovenue
Lhher Incoms §.000 4,799,573
Finance Income
Receipts from other operating activitics
Cash paymient to emplovecs (641.250) .
{her expenae paid (1,460,20%) (37.298)
Operating cash Mows before changes in operating asscts and liabilities (2,093,455) 4,762,275
(Ingrease)Thcrease in operating assets
Trade and Other Receivables
Inventorees {999 814) =
Prepaid and Deposis
(iher Assois (456,040) 288,802
Incrense{Ivcrease) in operating abilities
Trade and thiher Payubles
Prepaid and Deposits
Cither Lanbaliles B1.145 28250
Met cash Mow from operating sctivities before tix paid (3.465,164) 079,327
Ineome tases paid {4,707 618) (1.429.726)
Mot cush Mow Trom operatiog sciivities {8,178, 782) 3649601
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of propenty, Plant and equipment (2, TRS.B00) -
Proceeds from the sale of propeny, Plant and equipment
Acguisition of imangible asssts
Parchase of imvesinien! propenies
Procecds from the sale of invesiment properiies
Interest recoivied 17,785,516
St cash used in investing sctivithes 14,995.716
CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES
Recempts frou issue of shares 1 50 004, 000
Cher recepit/pavimen - -
Mot cash from Moanecing activities TS, (40,000
Ml incredse (decreise) in cash and cash equivalents 156,519,934 3,649,601
Opening Cash pnd cash equivalents al | Shrawan 39921 523 56271924
Effect of exchange rie fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held - .
Cash gnd cash equivalents ot Asadh end 216,741 459 50,921,525

tAmshish Koala) {Sifu Shakva)
Fiance (ilicer T3 _'.f - IMrector
i g e

CHLL k\W

. {F-apylu:ln Hajracharya)
Ly fz_.f': T

[Mirect N

e

Dide. Bhadra 13, 2080
Place: Kathmandu. MNepal

gy’

{Srjesh Gyawali)
LHrector

Az perfreport of even dote
Shankar Thapa, FCA
Partner
Shankor Associaies,
Chartered Accountants
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CBIL Securities Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
Faor the Year ended 31st Ashadh 2080 {16th July 2023)

Flgeures in NPR

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share Cupital Revaluation  ortined  Other o
ki carning reserve
Balance at 31 Ashadh 2078 S0,000, 000 - 6,725,382 - 56,715,382
Balance as at 1st Shrawan 2078 0,000,000 6,725,382
Profit fur the yvear 3,332,549
Other comprehensive income. net of tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability
fasselh
Mot gain ( loss) on revalustion
Total Comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve du rinE the vear
Balance at 32ad Ashadh 2079 SO0, 0D, DO - 10,057,930 = 60,057,930
Ealance as at st Shrawan 2079 SO0, D0 10057930
Profit for the year 10,984,442
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Issue of Share Capitnl 150,000,000
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability
(asset)
Met gain | loss) on revaluation
Total Comprebensive income for the vear
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transler from reserve during the year
Balance at 31st Ashadh 2080 200,000,000 - 21,042,372 - 221042372

s Ufddeat 20To

{Aashish Koirala)

(Siju Shakya)

Finance Officer Director

(Sapdran Bajracharya)
" Chairman

{ Ramdhan

shirestha)’

Drector

Daite: Bhadra 13, 2080
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

"
oo

(Srijesh Gyawali)
Director

As per n of even due
Shankar Thapa, FCA
Partner
Shankar Associates,
Chanered Accountants
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C.B.1.1. Securities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Ashadh, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Reporting Entity

CBIL Securities Limited was incorporated on June | 1, 2019 (Jestha 28, 2076) as public company under the
Companies Act, 2063, The principal activitics of the Company are 1o provide brokerage service related to
securities: margin troding, investment in sccurities and consultancy to its clients and other related services.
Citizens Bank International Limited as on date holds 100% controlling interest in the company.

Basis aof Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting.

The financial stateiments comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes (o the Accounts. The significant accounting policies applied in
the preparation of financial statements are s2t out in point number 3,

2.1, Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the company which comprises components mentioned above have been
prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (heréafter referred as NFRS) issued by
Accounting Standards Board of Nepal, endorsed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal and in
compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063 and Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in the industry in Nepal,

The Board of Directors of the company authorized the financial statemem vide its resolution dated Bhadra
13, 2080 (30" August, 2023) and recommended for its approval by the Annual General Meeting of the
sharcholders.

L.I. Reporting Period

Reporting Period is o period from the first day of Shrawan {mid July ) of any year to the last day of Ashadh
Cimid July ) of the next year as per the Nepali calendar.

MNepali Calendar Englhh Calendar
Current Year 2079/80 2022723
Previous Yoear 207879 202122

1“Shrawan2079 to 170 July 2022 to
Currént Year Period 317 Ashadh 2080 I6™ July 2023

15t Shrawan 2078 to 16" July 2021 to
Previous Year Period 32" Ashadh 2079 6 July 2022

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of the company are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR), which is the currency
of the primary econoinic ¢nvironment in which the company operates. Financial information is presented
in Mepalese Rupees. The fizures are rovmded to nearest integer, except otherwise indicated,

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgment

The preparation of Mnancial statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that
are considered while reporting amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent assets and liabilities)
as of the date of the financial statements, Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation
of the fingncial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting
estimates 15 recognized prospectively in current and future periods,

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the prepitation.of the consalidated financial stateme gt
setout below, The preparation of financial stalewents quuﬂgé;ﬁh: use of certain accounting estimatgss
et -:1._ ..:___'_: t"f..
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C.B.LL, Securities Limited
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31" Ashadh, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

arcas where significant judgments and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements and
their effects have been disclosed.

3.1, Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

3.2, Income Taxes

income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current taxes and deferred taxes. Income tax iz
recognized in the income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly to equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payvable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the balance
sheet date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years,

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrving amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected on realization or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

3.3, Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank accounts balances, highly liquid financial assets with
ariginal maturity of 3 months from the date of its acquisition and are readily convertible to cash, which are
subject to-an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and Cash equivalent are classified as financial assets and are measured at amortized cost in the
statement of financial position,

Statement of Cish Flows has been prepared by using the *Direct Method® in accordance with NAS 07-
Cash Flow Statements,
3.4, Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result af
a past evenl, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required 1o settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation,

3.5 Share Capital and Reserves
a)  Share Capiral

The company classifies the capital instruments as equity instruments or financial liabilities in accordance
with the substance with the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in
total assets of an entity after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the
company and distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.

16, Earnings per share

EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the company by
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

« oF




C.B.1.L. Securities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashadh, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

4.1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Figures in NPR)

As at As at
Particulars 31st Ashadh 32nd Ashadh
2030 — 2079
Cash in hand = ”
Cheque in Hand - -
Balance with B/Fls 16,741,459 171,525
Fixed Deposit with B/Fls 200,000,000 59,750,000
Other -
Taotal 216,741,45% 59,921,525
4.2, Inventories
As at As at
Particulars J1st Ashadh F2nd Ashadh
2080 2079
Stock m Hand - -
Others G 8 14 -
Tuotal 999 814 -
4.3, Prepaid and Deposits
As at As at
Particulars J1st Ashadh 32nd Ashadh
2 2079
Emplovee and other Advance 74,042 -
CIT Deposits
Orther Deposits 21,788 -
VAT Credit
Less: Impairment - -
Total 95,830 -
4.4, Current Tax Assels
As at As at
Particulars 3i1st Ashadh 32nd Ashadh
2080 2079
Current Tax Assels
Advance Tax 5,288,982 1.649.610
Less: Tax Liabilities (4.707.618) (1,428,455)
Total Current Tax Assets 581,364 221,155
Total 381,364 221,155

B

% [ Kathmandu | 4
Nepal
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C.B.LL, Secorities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 3151 Ashadh, 2080 (Julv 16, 2023}

4.6. Provisions (Figures in NPR)

As at Asal

Particulars 315t Ashadh 3Znd Ashadh
———— 2080 2079

Short Term
Account Payables 44,823 -
Property Tax Provision
Other Provisions 92,400 84.750
Total Short Term Provision 137,223 54,750
Long Term
Employee Medical Provision
Employee Leave Provision
Employee Gratuity Provision
Total Long Term Provision
Total 137,223 84,750
4.7. Other Liabilities

As at Asal

Particulars 315t Ashadh 3Znd Ashadh
2

TDS Pavahle 28.672 -
Total TDS Pavable 28.672 -
4.8, Share Capital

As at Ax at

31st Ashadh 32nd Ashadh

Farticulars 2080 2079
Authorized capital:
0,000,000 ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 600,000,000 100,000,000
Issued capital:
2000000 ordinary share of Rs.100 each 200,000,000 50,000,000
Subscribed and paid up capital:
2000000 ordinary share of Rs, 100 each 200,000,000 50,000,000
Total Paid Up Share Capital 200,000,000 50,000,004
4.9, Retained I-larnlngs

As at As al

31zt Ashadh J2nd Ashadh

Particulars 79
Retained Eamings 21,042,372 10,057,930
Other reserve - -
Total 21,042,372 10,057,930

B o

i
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C.B.LL, Securities Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashadh, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

4.10. Revenue {Figures in NPR)

As at Asat
Particulars 31st Ashadh 2080  32nd Ashadh 2079
Sules

Trading Gain
Commassion and Execution Fee

s Ufddeat 20To

Imerest Income 17,785,516 4,798,815
Other Income 2,000 758
Total 17,793,516 4,799,573
4.1 1. Peesonnel expense

As ut As at
Particilies J1st Ashadh 2080 32Znd Ashadh 2079
Salary Expense 440,000 -
Recruitment Expense 201250 -
Other expense related 1o smffs - =
Total 641,250 -
4.12. Oiher operaling expense

Asat As al
Particulayi Mst Ashadh 2080 32nd Ashudh 2079
Brirectors” fee 155,000
Directors’ expense - -
Meeting Expense - Others 10,000 -
Auditors' remuneration 28250 28.250
Other audit related expeirse - -
Communication Fxpense 23,000
Professional and legal expense -
Office administration expense 1,242,255 & 898
Rental Expenses
Repair and Mintenance Fxpenses -
Corporate Social Kesponsibility Expense
Fines and Penoltigs - -
Other 1,704 150
Tutal 1.460,205 37,298
413 lucome Tax

Asat As at
Purticulars 3st Ashadh 2080 32nd Ashadh 2079
Current Year Income Tax 4,707,618 1,429,726 .bn‘!'”‘ ﬁ\.‘:‘s‘%
Total 4,707,618 (1,429,726) /5 'E«gm\

* [ Kathmandy |
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C.B.LL. Sccurities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31" Ashadh, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Disclosures and Additional Notes
5.1 Related Party Disclosure

i, Related Party Disclosure of the company

The reluted parties of the company which meets the definition of related parties as defined in “NAS
24 Related Party Disclosures™ are as follows:

al Kev Management Porsomnel (KAMP)
The Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, dircctly or indirectly including any director,
The key management of the company includes members of its Board of Directors. The name of
the key management personnel during the year were as follows:

Name of the Key Management Personnel Post Remarks

M. Suptaman Bajracharya Chairman w.e.f. 27" Ashwin, 2079

_ Managing Director/Former
Mr. Ramdhan Shrestha Chairman weef 27" Ashwin, 2079

Mr. Suman Mulepai Former Director

Mr. Roeshan Manandhar Former Director

Mz, Akanksha Basnet Former Director

Mr. Srijesh Gyawali Director wee.f. 27 Ashwin, 2079
M. Siju Shakya Director w.e.E. 27" Ashwin, 2079

Mr., Kedhar Adhikari Company Secretary

bl Compensation to Key Management Persannel
The company has made following payment towards compensation to Key Management;

The details relating to compensation paid and expenses incurred 1o key management personnel
were as follows:

Particulars Current Year (NPR)
Meeting Fees 155,000
Chther Board Facility B
Uhther Expenses -
Total 155,000

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel (Managing director) were
as follows;

Particulars Current Year

B (NPR)

Shon term employee benelits 440,000
Post- employment benefits® -
Other long term benefits®® SE
Total - 440,000

| afffcp UfdGel 20TO




C.B.LL. Securities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statemenis
For the year ended 31" Ashadh, 2080 {July 16, 2023)

e} Holding Conmpany Shareholding %
MName and pereentage of sharcholding by Holding Company is as below:
Citizens Bank International Limited 100%
Transactivn with Holding Company

Citizens Bank International Limited

Citizens Bank International Limited (herein after ‘the Bank') has made investment in share capital
ol the company. The Bank holds 100 % controlling interest in the company.

The principal activities of the Bank is w provide all commercial Banking services including
agency services, trade finance services, e-commerce services and trading of gold and silver, eic,
to its customers through head office, branches, extension counters, branchless banking units and
ATMs,

I. The Bank has rented its building located in Kupondole, Lalitpur to the Company with the

agreement to pay Monthly Rent of NPR 60.000/- after the commencement of operation,
which will be increased by 10% in every 2 vear.

2. All receipt and payment transactions entered into by the company with the Bank were made
net of TDS.

3. The overall transactions with the Holding company included in Financial Statements of the
company has been tabulated below:

Particulars NPR

 Starement of Profit or Loss

Imerest Income 17,785:516
Total lncome 17,785,516
Rent Paid E
Total Expenses -

_Particulars NPR

 Statement of Fimancial Position

_Deposit in Holding company 216,749,959

S5.2Current Year Tax

Current year tax liability has been recognized on net profit at the rate of 30% to arrive at taxable profiL.
5.3 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share, also called net income per share, is a market prospect ratio that measures the amount
of net income’ loss camed per share of stock outstanding. It is calculuted by dividing profit or loss
attributable to ordinary equity holdérs by the average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period.

The carnings attributable 1o the ordinary equity holders consist of the earnings of the company afier
deduction of all expenses including tax expense.

The calculation of basic carnings per share of the company has been based on the profit/ loss attribatgBiz
to ordinary shareholders and number of shares gutstanding as tabulated below: '

@
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C.B.LLL. Securities Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31* Ashadh, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Purticulars 2079/80 2078179
Profit atrititable 1o ordinary sharcholders NPR 10,984,442 3332549
Mumber of ordinary shares. 2,000,000 S04, 000
Basic Earaings Per Share NPR 5.49 0.67

ST U
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